1953

Paul Pantages v. Sam Arge : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

FACTS OF THE CASE

In the month of September, 1951, Plaintiff and Defendant entered into a partnership agreement to buy and sell grapes upon an equal share and contribution basis. Defendant was to be the managing partner.

Pursuant to this agreement, the partners purchased a Ford truck in Defendant's name.

The only partnership grape purchase was made in California, said trip having been made by Plaintiff and one, Tom Argeropolis, an employee of the partnership.

The money for the purchase of the grapes and the expenses for said trip were furnished by Defendant.

A subsequent trip to Pocatello, Idaho for the purpose of selling some of said grapes was made by Tom Argeropolis at the instance of Defendant, as managing partner.

From the middle part of October, 1951, until June of 1952, Plaintiff had and used the truck upon a personal basis, independent of partnership business.

In June, 1952, finance payments due to Commercial Credit Company were delinquent and the finance company was threatening Defendant with suit and repossession of the truck.

Plaintiff refused to, or couldn't make payments; couldn't refinance it; and he concealed the truck from Defendant. In the same month Defendant took peaceable possession of the truck. He placed it for sale with a car agency. He obtained bids for it and finally sold the truck for a gross price of \$1,800.00, the highest bid.

The trial court refused to credit Defendant's capital

account with the following items, for the designated sums. - *Items 1 to 5, below.*

It is from the award of the trial court to Plaintiff of \$1,173.28 and the disallowance of Defendant's paid in capital in the sum of \$1,390.98, as above specified, that this appeal is taken. (R-13, 14, 17, 18, 18, 37, 38, 50, 97, 98, 118, 124, 125, 126, 131, 132, 141, 142, 150, 151, 154, 162, 163, 165, 166, 170, 171, 172.)

SPECIFICATION OF POINTS RELIED ON

The trial court erred in entering judgment for Plaintiff in the sum of \$1,173.28 because:

1. Wages for 3 weeks work paid to Tom Argeropolis; receipt therefor, Defendant's exhibit 4\$ 225.00
2. Expenses for grape buying trip to California, and sales trip to Pocatello, Idaho; receipts therefore, Defendant's exhibit 8\$ 309.72
3. Truck insurance payments; receipt therefor, Defendant's exhibit 2\$ 206.26
4. Difference between actual sales price of truck and the sum trial court held was a fair price\$ 500.00
5. Partnership accounting services, incurred by Defendant\$ 150.00

\$1,390.98

POINT I.

FACTS OF THE TRIAL SHOW THAT DEFENDANT, AS MANAGING PARTNER, WITH PLAINTIFF'S KNOWLEDGE, HAD TOM ARGEROPOLIS WORK AS A TRUCK DRIVER FOR THE PARTNERSHIP, AND THAT DEFENDANT PAID TOM ARGEROPOLIS \$225.00 FOR 3 WEEKS WORK, WHICH SUM WAS NOT CREDITED TO DEFENDANT'S CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION.

POINT II.

FACTS OF THE TRIAL SHOW THAT DEFENDANT PAID FOR ALL TRUCK AND LIVING EXPENSES ON THE GRAPE BUYING TRIP TO CALIFORNIA, UPON PARTNERSHIP BUSINESS, IN THE SUM OF \$309.72, WHICH SUM WAS NOT CREDITED TO DEFENDANT'S CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION.

POINT III.

FACTS OF THE TRIAL SHOW THAT DEFENDANT PAID TRUCK INSURANCE IN THE SUM OF \$330.29, BUT THAT HE WAS ONLY CREDITED WITH THE SUM OF \$124.03 AS A CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION.

POINT IV.

A PARTNERSHIP IS NOT TERMINATED BY AN ACT OF DISSOLUTION.

POINT V.

FACTS OF THE TRIAL SHOW THAT, UPON THREAT

OF LOSS OF THE TRUCK BY REPOSSESSION, DEFENDANT, BEFORE PARTNERSHIP TERMINATION, SOLD THE TRUCK FOR THE BEST OBTAINABLE PRICE OF \$1,800.00, AND THAT TESTIMONY AS TO ACTUAL WORK SHOULD NOT BE CONSIDERED UNLESS THERE IS ALLEGATION AND PROOF OF FRAUD OR PERSONAL ENRICHMENT OF DEFENDANT.

POINT VI.

FACTS OF THE TRIAL SHOW THAT DEFENDANT REASONABLY AND NECESSARILY OBLIGATED THE PARTNERSHIP FOR \$150.00 FOR ACCOUNTING SERVICES BEFORE TERMINATION OF THE PARTNERSHIP, WHICH SUM WAS NOT CREDITED TO DEFENDANT'S CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION.

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

FACTS OF THE TRIAL SHOW THAT DEFENDANT, AS MANAGING PARTNER, WITH PLAINTIFF'S KNOWLEDGE, HAD TOM ARGEROPOLIS WORK AS A TRUCK DRIVER FOR THE PARTNERSHIP, AND THAT DEFENDANT PAID TOM ARGEROPOLIS \$225.00 FOR 3 WEEKS WORK, WHICH SUM WAS NOT CREDITED TO DEFENDANT'S CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION.

The testimony of Plaintiff reveals that Defendant was to be the managing partner, and that Tom Argeropolis was to assist in grape hauling, and that they entered into business on that basis (R-14, lines 2 to 18).

Plaintiff testified that Tom was to aid in the business, and did, in fact, work for both partners for a period of about three weeks (R-37, lines 22 to 30; R-38, lines 1 to 20). The three week period when Tom was so employed included his trucking grapes from California, and selling them in Pocatello, with the consent of Plaintiff. (R-40, lines 5 to 25; R-66, lines 1 to 29).

Tom received \$225.00 for this work. (Defendant's exhibit 4; R-81, lines 24 to 30; R-82, lines 1 to 9).

The record is bare of any suggestion that this is unreasonable, yet the trial court, purporting to allow this sum to Defendant, states in its Finding of Fact, Exhibit A, that it is a sales expense, yet fails to give Defendant credit for the expenditure, charging Defendant with receiving the full amount of all sales.

Were the lower court's decision upheld, Defendant would be required to stand the full burden of all wages paid to the only employee the partnership had.

POINT II.

FACTS OF THE TRIAL SHOW THAT DEFENDANT PAID FOR ALL TRUCK AND LIVING EXPENSES ON THE GRAPE BUYING TRIP TO CALIFORNIA, UPON PARTNERSHIP BUSINESS, IN THE SUM OF \$309.72, WHICH SUM WAS NOT CREDITED TO DEFENDANT'S CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION.

The uncontroverted testimony is that Plaintiff did not have any money when he and Tom left for California to buy grapes. (R-17, lines 17 to 22).

Defendant sent \$800.00 with which to purchase grapes and pay expenses. (Defendant's exhibit 3; R-81, lines 5 to 20).

Plaintiff and Tom paid \$620.00 for the grapes in California. (Defendant's exhibit 7; R-86, lines 4 to 17).

There was a \$180.00 balance, therefor, which was expended for trucking and living expenses for the trip to California and Pocatello, said expense items being contained in Defendant's exhibit 8. Further, the sum of \$29.00 additional was expended for like expenses, as shown in said exhibit. The total of \$309.72 was not allowed to Defendant as a credit.

Plaintiff on direct examination testified that he could not identify any of the charges evidenced in Defendant's exhibit 8, and that none of those items were charged when he was on partnership business (R-165, lines 20, 21; R-166, lines 3 to 5).

On cross-examination Plaintiff admitted that many of the charges therein noted were charges made on the trip to California. (R-171, line 30; R-172, lines 1 to 25).

There is absolutely no evidence that any of the

charges in Exhibit 8 were not partnership charges. Those with "T" on them were made by Tom, and those with "P" were made by Plaintiff. There is no evidence that Plaintiff paid any of them with his own money.

The trial court's Judgment, if sustained, would be a holding that either the trips didn't cost anything, or that Defendant had to pay for them by himself. This was a proved partnership with equal contribution. (Findings of Fact, paragraph I), and either result is completely untenable in law, and in good conscience.

Further, the record is completely barren of any evidence by Plaintiff that any of the items in Defendant's exhibit 8 were for anything but partnership purposes.

POINT III.

FACTS OF THE TRIAL SHOW THAT DEFENDANT PAID TRUCK INSURANCE IN THE SUM OF \$330.29, BUT THAT HE WAS ONLY CREDITED WITH THE SUM OF \$124.03 AS A CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION.

Defendant's exhibit 2 is a receipt for truck insurance paid by Defendant in the sum of \$330.29. (R-79, lines 28 to 30; R-80, lines 1 to 28). The trial court allowed credit to Defendant of only \$124.03. (Finding of Fact exhibit A).

The only rebuttal testimony offered against this item is found in Plaintiff's exhibit F, referred to at R-161, lines 29 to 30; R-162, lines 1 to 25, by Plaintiff, who states he doesn't know what it is, what date it was made, or what it means.

Defendant explains Plaintiff's exhibit F, admitted over objection, at R-108, 109, 110, and there is no evidence of even a slightly contradictory nature.

Here again, the trial court, upon no evidence, though Plaintiff has the burden of proof, disallows a capital contribution of Defendant's in the sum of \$206.26.

POINT IV.

A PARTNERSHIP IS NOT TERMINATED BY AN ACT OF DISSOLUTION.

The court in its Findings of Fact, paragraph III, states as a matter of law that when Defendant took peaceable possession of the truck on June 26, 1952, that he converted it, and thus the partnership was terminated. It is well settled in Utah and elsewhere that such is not the law, and that such an act results in dissolution, but not termination.

Title 48, Chapter 1, Sec. 27, 1953 U.C.A.

PARTNERSHIP NOT Terminated by dissolution —

On dissolution a partnership is not terminated, but continues until winding up of partnership affairs is completed.

Title 48, Chapter 1, Sec. 28 (2), 1953 U.C.A. Causes of Disolution — Dissolution is caused: (2) In contravention of the agreement between the partners, where the circumstances do not permit a dissolution under any other provision of this section, by the express will of any partner at any time.

The evidence is clear that the partners could not agree, and Defendant, to protect both parties, committed a positive act of dissolution by re-taking the truck and disposing of it, as will be set forth in Point V, following.

POINT V.

FACTS OF THE TRIAL SHOW THAT, UPON THREAT OF LOSS OF THE TRUCK BY REPOSSESSION, DEFENDANT, BEFORE PARTNERSHIP TERMINATION, SOLD THE TRUCK FOR THE BEST OBTAINABLE PRICE OF \$1,800.00, AND THAT TESTIMONY AS TO ACTUAL WORK SHOULD NOT BE CONSIDERED UNLESS THERE IS ALLEGATION AND PROOF OF FRAUD OR PERSONAL ENRICHMENT OF DEFENDANT.

Facts of the trial show that Plaintiff had the sole and exclusive personal use of the truck from October, 1951 to June, 1952. (R-49, lines 5 and 6). It is clear Plaintiff held it as his own (R-52, lines 3 to 5), but

could not refinance it ~~and~~ to relieve Defendant of liability on the finance contract. (R-162, lines 26 to 30; R-163, lines 1 to 20).

Defendant was threatened with writ for delinquent payments and repossession (R-153, lines 24 to 30; R-154, lines 1 to 20).

Defendant had to take the truck to protect both parties. Defendant was dealing with an uneducated man, as is revealed by Plaintiff's language and his own testimony at R-47, lines 26 and 27.

Defendant obtained many bids and had the truck placed for sale with a dealer. He took the best cash offer, which was \$1,800.00 (R-97, 98, 99).

The trial court held that the market value of the truck was \$2,300.00, and deducted the difference from Plaintiff's capital account.

Defendant sold the truck in winding up the affairs of the partnership, and he should not be thus penalized without evidence of fraud or bad faith.

POINT VI.

FACTS OF THE TRIAL SHOW THAT DEFENDANT
REASONABLY AND NECESSARILY OBLIGATED THE

PARTNERSHIP FOR \$150.00 FOR ACCOUNTING SERVICES BEFORE TERMINATION OF THE PARTNERSHIP, WHICH SUM WAS NOT CREDITED TO DEFENDANT'S CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION.

Facts of the trial show the accounting work done, the scope of it, and the reasonableness of the charge. (R-131, 132, 141, 142).

The partnership was not terminated when this work was done, as the trial court ruled.

The work was necessary to a winding up of the affairs of the partners.

This is an equity action for an accounting, and it is neither just nor equitable that the full burden of accounting expense upon winding up should be borne by only one partner.

CONCLUSION

It is urged that the trial court erred in its Judgment in that the Judgment is not sustained in fact, in law, or in good conscience.

It is urged that Defendant's disallowed items herein referred to in the total sum of \$1,390.98 should be offset against Plaintiff's Judgment in the sum of \$1,173.28,

which would leave a credit balance to Defendant of \$217.70. Said sum of \$217.70 should then be divided and Judgment awarded in favor of Defendant for the sum of \$108.85.