1953

Paul Pantages v. Sam Arge : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Appellant's Statement of Facts does not fully set forth the evidence concerning the affairs of the parties, and it is therefore necessary for the Respondent to set out a more complete Statement of Facts.

Sometime in September, 1951 the plaintiff and defendant talked about entering into a partnership to buy and sell grapes. After a few conversations it was decided that they would enter into the grape business and purchase a truck. The parties went to Bennett's Motor

Company in Salt Lake City, Utah and purchased a new Ford truck for the sum of \$3,669.88. The plaintiff turned in his Studebaker car as the down payment on the truck, and the sum of \$886.84 was credited on the purchase price of the Ford. The balance in the sum of \$2,783.04 was payable in monthly installments of \$115.96. Title to said truck was taken in the name of the defendant, Sam Arge (see Exhibit 1, Conditional Sales Contract).

About the time of the purchase of the truck there was some talk between the plaintiff and the defendant, defendant's brother, Tom, and Reed Tuft, attorney, about going into a four-way partnership, but these conversations never crystalized into such partnership.

About September 20th, 1951, the defendant sent the plaintiff and Tom Arge to California to buy a load of grapes. The defendant, by Western Union, sent to his brother a money order in the sum of \$800.00 to purchase the grapes. A load of grapes in the sum of \$620.00 was purchased by Tom Arge and brought to Salt Lake City. The defendant claimed he had the grapes sold in Idaho and he had his brother take the truck load of grapes to Pocatello to sell them. Several days thereafter the truck returned with about forty or fifty boxes of grapes (about 2/3 of a ton) unsold. These grapes were turned over to the plaintiff who sold them for \$100.00, which money he turned over to the defendant.

The defendant turned over the truck to the plaintiff and told him that if he wanted to get a load of grapes he could do so for himself individually. Accordingly the

plaintiff, around October 5th, 1951, purchased a load of grapes from California and sold them (R. 33-34). At a later date the plaintiff drove the truck to Boise, Idaho and brought back the defendant's household furniture to Salt Lake City. The plaintiff paid for the gas and oil, and for the expenses of making the trip, out of his own pocket (R. 33). Subsequently, the truck was used by the parties for their personal uses as they desired.

In the early part of June, 1952, plaintiff and defendant met in the office of plaintiff's attorney to bring about a settlement of their affairs, and primarily to induce the plaintiff to allow the truck to be sent to California to be worked by one of the defendant's relatives. Defendant offered the plaintiff \$800.00 for his interest in the truck, which offer plaintiff refused (R. 165). A few days thereafter, to-wit, on June 20, 1952, defendant instituted an action against the plaintiff, stating in the Complaint and Affidavit for a Writ of Replevin, that he was the owner of the truck and entitled to immediate possession of the same, and that said truck was wrongfully held by the defendant. Defendant sent a wrecker and picked the truck off the street and placed it in a garage, and, pursuant to his action, the sheriff turned the truck over to the plaintiff who, upon the day of getting possession, caused his action for replevin to be dismissed (R. 65). Plaintiff never saw the truck again and was never advised by the defendant as to its disposition.

Plaintiff, in addition to making the down payment

in the sum of \$886.84, paid all the monthly installments on the truck, amounting to the sum of \$927.68, and \$151.00 in other items, and up to the time of conversion of the truck the plaintiff had paid on the same the sum of \$1,965.52. Defendant's only contribution to the truck was insurance on the same amounting to the sum of \$124.03.

ARGUMENT

At the trial Appellant contended that he had contributed \$1,719.32 to the partnership (see Exhibit 18). However, his evidence and testimony did not substantiate his claims and the Court found that most of his contentions did not exist. In Exhibit "A" attached to the Findings of Fact (R. 194) there is set forth in detail specific findings on the items raised in Appellant's brief.

Respondent will argue Appellant's Points in the order raised by him.

POINTS I and II

Points I and II arise primarily out of the sale of grapes in Idaho. The trial Court found that Appellant netted, from the sale of grapes, the sum of \$805.95 after deducting wages from Tom Arge and truck expenses (R. 193). Tom's wages were considered by the Court and proper credit was given in the accounting made by the Court. Likewise, the item of \$309.72 complained of by the Appellant was considered by the Court. It is clear

from the evidence that these items were paid by Pantages and Tom Arge (R. 81) and said items were not all expended in the sale of grapes. Many of the items were expenses made by the various parties, both in the sale of grapes and in running the truck for their own personal use. The record discloses that the reason these bills for gas and oil, etc., were turned over to the Appellant was for the purpose of taking tax deductions for the same on the part of the Appellant (R. 178). Under the findings of the Court, Respondent cannot see any merit to Appellant's Points Nos. I and II.

POINT III

The Court found that the insurance on the truck amounted to the sum of \$124.03, and that such sum was paid for by the Appellant. The Court gave Mr. Arge credit for this amount in its accounting. Appellant contends that he is entitled to a credit of \$330.29, or \$206.26 more than allowed to him by the Court. This claim is contrary to the evidence and against Appellant's own written admission as shown in Exhibit F, wherein, it appears from said Exhibit in his own hand writing that the insurance paid by him was in the sum of \$124.03. The record further discloses that demand was made upon the Appellant's bookkeeper to produce a check showing payment of any sum in excess of \$124.03 (R. 148). He could not produce any such check. His only evidence was a self-paid statement issued by Mr. Arge in behalf of his own Insurance Company (R. 149). It should also be noted that the insurance policy had been cancelled

shortly after the grape sales and, therefore, the sum could not possibly exceed the amount found by the Court (R. 174).

POINTS IV and V

The Court found that "on or about the 28th day of June, 1952, the defendant took said truck into his own exclusive possession and appropriated the same to his own use." As pointed out in the statement of facts herein, the Appellant gained possession of the truck upon the ground that he was the owner thereof through his replevin action, and immediately after getting possession of the truck through the sheriff of Salt Lake County, he caused his action to be dismissed. Thereafter, without the knowledge or consent of his partner, Appellant sold the truck at the Salt Lake Auction for the sum of \$1,800.00. The Salt Lake Auction is an institution used by dealers to buy cars at wholesale prices. The Court found at the time of the taking of the truck, the reasonable market value was \$2,300.00. This value was based upon testimony by a qualified automobile salesman.

In 68 C.J.S., page 528, paragraph 88, dealing with a Misappropriation of Firm Property on the part of a partner, it is stated:

"Where a partner collects or receives any property or funds which rightfully belong to the partnership, such property or funds inure to the benefit of the partnership. A partner may not use partnership property for individual profit or benefit, as discussed infra No. 99; and, if he

employs firm funds or property for his personal advantage without the consent of the other partners, he is guilty of a misappropriation and will be compelled to account for the funds or for the value of the property appropriated as of the time of the misappropriation, and is chargeable with all the loss of detriment suffered by the firm from the diversion.”

In *Kaufer vs. Rothman*, (N. J.) 131 A. 581, the partner made away with a number of furs belonging to the partnership. It was held that the partner who wrongfully appropriates partnership assets must account for their real value, not the sacrificed price for which he sold them.

In *Mills vs. Williams*, (Oregon) 223 P. 542, where action of defendant in taking over partnership property amounted to conversion of plaintiff's interest, defendant became liable to plaintiff for one half value of firm property as of time of conversion.

Likewise in *Wilson vs. Brown*, (Cal.) 273 P. 847, it was stated:

“It was found in this case that defendants had wrongfully and maliciously appropriated property of the partnership, of which the lots represented by these “accounts receivable” were a part. Plaintiff was entitled, therefore, treating this as a conversion, to a judgment for the reasonable value of the lots so converted. Defendants cannot complain that the price for which they had sold them was not their reasonable value.”

In *Lynn vs. Arehart*, (Mich.) 203 N.W. 834, it was held that a partner who sold 12,000 tile blocks he had taken after a fire, was chargeable with the market value thereof at the time of the taking.

POINT VI

The Court found that the claim in the sum of \$150.00 for the accounting services rendered by Mr. Jones was not a partnership obligation. The Court was right in making this finding, as the services rendered by Mr. Jones are set forth in Exhibit 18. This Exhibit is a statement made up of the items claimed to have been paid by Mr. Arge in behalf of the partnership, and also items which he did not dispute have been paid by Pantages. The Exhibit was nothing more than a personal memorandum to be used by the Appellant and his attorneys in the trial of the case. The Court determined that the services of Mr. Jones, who by the way is also the bookkeeper and accountant of the Appellant, were rendered for the personal use of his employer.

CONCLUSION

There is a sharp conflict in the evidence on the various items contended to have been paid by each of the parties. The Trial Court has made findings on each item contended for by each of the parties and entered its judgment in accordance therewith.

Many items claimed by the Appellant in the trial, as having been paid by him have been abandoned in this

appeal. It is believed that the evidence and testimony that appears in the record clearly substantiates the award made by the Court, and that the appellant has been credited with all items that he was entitled to be credited, and that the judgment of the Court should be affirmed.